
 

 

 
 
 
 
Please ask for Rachel Appleyard 
Direct Line: 01246 345277 
Email  committee.services@chesterfield.gov.uk 
 
The Chair and Members of Planning 
Sub-Committee 

 

 19 January 2021 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 

Please attend a meeting of the PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE to be held 
on WEDNESDAY, 27 JANUARY 2021 at 10.00 am, the agenda for which is set 
out below. 

 
This meeting will be held virtually via Microsoft Teams software, for which 

members of the Committee and others in attendance will receive an invitation. 
Members of the public will be able to access the meeting online by following the 
link here. 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part 1(Public Information) 
 

1.    Declarations of Members' and Officers' Interests relating to Items on the 
Agenda  
 

2.    Apologies for Absence  
 

3.    Chesterfield Borough Council (Langhurst Road) Tree Preservation Order 
No. 351, 2020 (Pages 3 - 60) 
 
 

Yours sincerely, 

 
Local Government and Regulatory Law Manager and Monitoring Officer 

Public Document Pack

https://www.chesterfield.gov.uk/your-council/committees-meetings-and-decisions.aspx


This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
FOR PUBLICATION 

 
CHESTERFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

(LANGHURST ROAD) 
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER NO. 351, 2020 

 

 
MEETING: 
 

 
Planning Sub-Committee 
 

DATE: 
 

27th January 2021 

REPORT BY: 
 

Development Management & Conservation Manager 
 

WARD: Brockwell 
 

 
For publication 
 

 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To inform Committee of objections which have been received to the above 

Tree Preservation Order. 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 On the 19th August 2020, the Council made a Tree Preservation Order in 

respect of a woodland adjacent to Langhurst Road, Ashgate after an 
enquiry was made to Planning Service on the 4th August 2020 to check 
whether there were any restrictions on the trees as the owner of the land 
proposed to remove the trees in preparation for development.   

 
2.2 The trees were inspected and an assessment was carried out to ascertain 

the woodlands amenity value using the Tree Evaluation Method for 
Preservation Orders (TEMPO) which is used by the Council to assess 
whether or not an individual tree, group of trees or woodlands have any 
amenity value. The Tree Evaluation Method for Preservation Orders 
assessment is attached to the report at Appendix A. The woodland scored 
20 points which concluded that the woodland definitely merits a Tree 
Preservation Order. The woodland as a whole unit is very prominent from 
the public highway and footpath and contributes significantly to the amenity 
of the local area, streetscene and network of footpaths and cycle paths that 
are located along the River Holme Brook. The Order plan is attached at 
Appendix B and photographs of the woodland are attached at Appendix C. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2 

 
2.3 The woodland consists of a mixture of trees species which include mainly 

Sycamore, Willow, Silver Birch, Ash, Hawthorn, Alder, Holly, Apple and 
Poplar. The woodland has developed over time naturally through 
succession, taking advantage of the waste spoil that was tipped on the site 
in the past. To the north of the site is the Holme Brook watercourse which 
provides a valuable tree lined wildlife corridor which expands into the site 
towards Ashgate Road as shown in figure 1 below.  

 

 
 Figure 1: Google image 2020 Langhurst Road. 
  

The woodland is therefore a continuation of the River corridor providing a 
valuable green space and a green buffer to Brockwell School to the north. 
The woodland is highly visible from the highway, cycle lanes and footpaths 
contributing to the amenity and character of the area.  
 

2.4 Historical maps 1888-1913 show the area where the woodland is located as 
enclosed fields boundaries and tracks leading to Holme Hall and Newbold 
as shown in figure 2 below.  

 
 

Page 4



3 

 
  

Figure 2: National Library of Scotland Image 1888-1913 
 

 
2.5 The historical maps 1949-1969 then show a change of land use and 

housing along what is now known as Langhurst Road as shown on figure 3 
below.  
 

Page 5



4 

 
  
 Figure 3: National Library of Scotland Image 1949-1969 
 
2.6 Notices of making the Order were served on those directly affected 

including the owner of the land, other local residents whose properties either 
adjoin or are close by, together with statutory undertakers. Site notices were 
also placed around the site.  

 
2.7 Under Regulation 6 of the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) 

(England) Regulations 2012 objections to the Emergency Order which was 
made had to be delivered to the Council in writing by the 21st September 
2020. The Emergency provisional TPO expires on the 19th February 2021 
and must be either confirmed or otherwise by that date. 

 

Page 6



5 

3.0 OBJECTIONS 
 
3.1 Two objections were received to the woodland Order by Mr Stockton the 

Landowner and Mr Bussey of JCA Arboricultural Consultants. 
 
3.2 Mr Andrew Bussey of JCA Arboricultural Consultants submitted an objection 

report to the Tree Preservation Order on behalf of the landowner Mr 
Stockton which was received on the 17th September 2020. A copy of the 
consultant’s objection report is attached to the report at Appendix D. Mr 
Bussey objected to the Order on the following four points:   

 
1. The main area of the site comprises dense, self-seeded pioneer species 

including Goat Willow, Common Ash, Downy Birch and Hawthorn which 
have grown on an area which was originally used on as a dumping ground 
for pottery waste and furnace ash. It should be noted that Birch sp. was 
noted included on the TPO Schedule 

 
2. The trees located within the former dumping ground/builders’ yard were 

found to be of a poor individual form in general, being either of a multiple 
stemmed nature or of a poor and slender form. Additionally, as the majority 
of trees are located on what is made and loose ground, many trees were 
noted to have rising root plates, this is a sign that the trees have reached 
their full growth potential for their locations and are likely to collapse or fail in 
the near future. 

 
3. Those trees which are located on the former dumping ground/builders’ yard 

are not considered worthy of protected status under the remit of a Woodland 
Tree Preservation Order. 

 
4. In light of the fact that there are trees of note located adjacent to Holme 

Brook, our client has accepted that these trees are worthy of protected 
status and would like the Woodland Order to be amended to only include 
these trees, as well as a 5 metre buffer from the top of the riverside bank 
into the site. This would retain the amenity value of the riverside woodland 
and retain the wildlife corridor that this group of trees provides. It should be 
noted that our client has intention for a future development within the 
confines of the former dumping ground/builders’ yard. During our site 
meeting, our client confirmed that new tree planting would form a substantial 
part of the development proposals. Additionally, our client also stated that 
he is more than happy to introduce new tree stock into the riverside 
woodland in order to enhance its amenity value and to provide a more 
varied species diversity. 

 
3.4 A further objection was received by email on the 18th September 2020 from 

the landowner Mr J Stockton. A copy of the objection email is attached to 

Page 7



6 

the report at Appendix E. Mr Stockton objected to the Order on the following 
three points:    

 
1. The site at Langhurst Road has historically been in the local plan as 

an area to be developed for housing. This order would in its current 
form stop this or reduce its viability. The intention is to develop the site 
with improvements to Langhurst Road and the junction of Langhurst 
Road and Ashgate Road along with housing, the majority being 
bungalows and maybe a small mix of flats sold on a part buy, part rent 
ownership basis. From discussions with the Council there is a 
shortage of such properties in the borough. The objector believes the 
benefits to the community of such a scheme far outweighs the loss of 
some poor quality trees which are nearing the end of their lifespan due 
to the nature of the ground which they are growing in and the effects 
of disease (ash die back). 

 
2. The site was used as a waste tip for pottery waste and ash up until the 

early 1900s with more recent tipping of spoil in the late 1970s early 
1980. The site was cleared of tree's in the late 1970 and the trees 
which are there now are self-set pioneer species no older than 50 
years. 

 
3. As a responsible developer the objector is willing to compromise and 

as stated in the consultant’s correspondence would be happy to form 
a wildlife corridor along the Holmebrook boundary of the site.   

 
4.0 RESPONSE TO OBJECTIONS 
 
4.1 In response to the objections, the Councils Strategic Planning & Key Sites 

Manager was consulted regarding the Chesterfield Local Plan and site 
designation and the full comments can be found in Appendix F.  Full 
responses to My Bussey JCA, and Mr Stockton’s objections was provided 
on the 9th October 2020 and the response letter to Mr Bussey can be found 
in appendix G and the response letter to Mr Stockton can be found in 
Appendix H. 

 
4.2 In response to the first point raised by Mr Bussey of JCA, Tree Preservation 

Orders (TPO) are served if the Local Planning Authority believe there is a 
risk of the trees being cut down or pruned in ways which would have a 
significant impact on the amenity of the area. Any tree, that one would 
normally call a tree can be protected by a Tree Preservation Order and in 
this situation, officers consider that the trees as a whole unit at Langhurst 
Road are at risk generally from development pressures and would have 
been felled if not for the Emergency TPO. The protection of trees by a 
precautionary TPO is therefore considered expedient so that the Council 
has control over any future proposals to fell or prune the trees.  

Page 8



7 

 
Whether trees are self-seeded, planted or pioneering species is not a valid 
reason why the Order should not be confirmed. The order is essentially 
considering the amenity value of the trees. Furthermore, many mature 
woodlands that exist today were established by natural succession rather 
than being planted containing localised native tree stock which is by far the 
preferred option for a natural woodland. 

 
Finally, Birch trees as well as apple, Laburnum, Lombardy Poplar, Cherry, 
Holly and Elder are also not included in the 1st Schedule even though they 
are present on the site. A woodland Order protects all the trees within the 
woodland area and it is not necessary for the purposes of a woodland TPO 
to record the number of trees and all species of tree, and a general 
description is sufficient. 

 
4.3 In response to the second point raised by Mr Bussey and Mr Stockton, the 

land may have been used as a waste tip for pottery waste and ash, but it 
would have also been used for various other uses in the past and it is clear 
that the trees have taken advantage of the poor ground conditions and are 
thriving. Officers have visited the site on many occasions and walked 
through the whole area and found no evidence to suggest that where there 
is made-up ground it is detrimental to the tree’s health or long-term growth 
or stability. There are some trees within the woodland that are of a poor 
condition but that is a natural occurrence in a woodland setting. There is 
also a dead Birch tree on the woodland edge that does require removing but 
this could be removed at any time by giving the Council 5 working days’ 
notice of removal. The current situation is that the land is covered by trees 
which are of various sizes, species and age. It may be the case that some 
of the trees are no more than 50 years in age but there are also trees that 
are younger and older creating a multi aged small woodland. The is also 
evidence to suggest that natural regeneration is occurring in the woodland 
with Ash, Sycamore, Hawthorn, Hazel, Holly and Yew emerging which will 
succeed and take advantage when other trees are lost. 

 
 A woodland Preservation Order safeguards the woodland as a whole unit 

rather than individual trees. Trees which are planted or grow naturally within 
the woodland area after the TPO is made are also protected by the TPO so 
that the natural regeneration is continued. It may be the case that some of 
the trees within the woodland are poor in condition and multi stemmed but 
for the purpose of a Tree Preservation Order, it is the contribution the 
woodland makes as a local amenity adjacent to the River Corridor, public 
footpath and roadway which justifies why the preservation order was 
served. 

 
 There is no doubt that a walk through the woodland, one could find many 

trees that could be felled due to their condition and form if assessed 

Page 9



8 

individually but this would be the case for many individual trees within any 
woodland. It is their overall visual impact and contribution on mass to the 
local area that has been considered. Furthermore, if any individual trees 
become unsafe then the Tree Preservation Order application process can 
be used to remove any tree that could become or is a danger to the general 
public. 

 
 There is no evidence to suggest that the trees on the site are coming to the 

end of their lifespan due to the nature of the ground. As above it is accepted 
that there are some trees of poor quality and condition, but this is a natural 
occurrence in a woodland setting as each tree competes for nutrients, water 
and light. Natural succession will occur, and it is inevitable that the more 
dominant species will take over and natural regeneration replace lost 
species. 

 
4.4 In response to point three by Mr Bussey, an assessment/evaluation was 

made of the woodland using the Tree Evaluation Method for Preservation 
Orders (TEMPO). It is clear from the assessment that the woodland is highly 
suitable for a Preservation Order. As previously mentioned, the woodland 
has been considered for a Tree Preservation Order as a whole unit and not 
as individual trees. 

 
4.5 In response to point four of the Mr Bussey JCA objection and Mr Stockton’s 

first and third point of objection, the trees located along the River corridor 
are included in the Emergency Tree Preservation Order and are therefore 
currently already protected. The remainder of trees within the preservation 
order are a continuation of the River corridor habitat and provide a green 
wedge which is identified in the Council new Local Plan 2018-2035. 

 
 Regardless of the position in previous local plans, any application 

submitted, under Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004 and section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, 
need to be determined in accordance with the current adopted development 
plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The development 
plan for the borough is the Chesterfield Borough Local Plan 2018-2035 and 
this clearly identifies the site as open space and as part of a Green Wedge 
on the policies map (the yellow stripes, below). 

   

Page 10



9 

            
 Chesterfield Borough Local Plan 2018-2035. 
 
 Under policy CLP15 development proposals should not harm the character 

and function of the Green Wedge, the purpose of which is to: 
 

 maintain open areas between parts of settlements within the urban area of 
Chesterfield to prevent them from merging; 

 provide a ‘Green Lung’, penetrating from open countryside into an urban 
area; 

 support recreational purposes which allow access from urban areas to the 
countryside and, where appropriate, contains informal and formal outdoor 
recreational facilities; 

 maintain the existing or influence the form and direction of urban 
development. 

 
 Development of this site would contradict the purposes of the Green Wedge 

and conflict with the Councils newly adopted Local Plan. 
 
 At the present time no planning application has been submitted to the 

Council to develop the land but if one is received, the proposals and layout 
will be considered through the normal planning process and a decision 
made on the information provided and the affects the development will have 
on the protected trees within the woodland Order and Local Plan.  

 
 Development of this site would contradict the purposes of the Green Wedge 

and conflict with the Local Plan. Whilst noting the reference to flats and 
bungalows, the Local Plan does not identify this as a specific shortage and, 
even if this were the case, there is no evidence to suggest that such a need 

Page 11



10 

is local to this area or could not be provided on other sites that are in 
accordance with the Local Plan. Further, shared ownership is not a form of 
affordable housing that is in particular demand in Chesterfield (the adopted 
plan only seeks 1 in 10 affordable units as shared ownership to reflect the 
low demand for this tenure). The borough is able to identify a five year 
supply of deliverable housing sites as required by the NPPF. 

 
 It is not therefore considered that these issues could be afforded any 

significant weight as material considerations that might outweigh the 
adopted planning policy. For the sake of clarity, previous Local Plans, 
including the 1996 Chesterfield Borough Local Plan, the 2006 Replacement 
Chesterfield Local Plan, the consultation on the Sites and Boundaries DPD 
(2012) and the draft Local Plan (2017) have been checked. The site does 
not appear to have been specifically allocated for housing, or included as a 
site for consultation, in any of those plans. In the 1996 Local Plan it was 
included within an area identified as ‘primarily residential’ but was not 
named as a specific housing site, and this designation was not carried 
through to later Plans’. 

 

  
 Chesterfield Borough Local Plan – 1996. 
 

Page 12



11 

  
 Replacement Chesterfield Borough Local Plan – 2006.  
 
 
 
 

  
 Sites and Boundaries Development Plan Document; Issues and Options 

Consultation – 2012. 
 

Page 13



12 

  
 Draft Chesterfield Borough Local Plan (for consultation purposes) – 2017. 

Showing proposed Green Wedge designation.  
 
 Finally, in response to Mr Stockton’s comments on Ash dieback, there is no 

evidence to suggest that the trees on the site are coming to the end of their 
lifespan due to the nature of the ground and Ash dieback. It is accepted that 
there are some trees of poor quality and condition, but this is a natural 
occurrence in a woodland setting as each tree competes for nutrients, water 
and light. Natural succession will occur, and it is inevitable that the more 
dominant species will take over and natural regeneration replace lost 
species. There is also no evidence that Ash dieback is having any effect on 
the tree cover and current advice is that any infected trees should not be 
removed unless they are a significant risk. 

 
5.0 SUPPORT FOR THE PRESERVATION ORDER 
 
5.1 An email of support for the Preservation Order was received from Alastair 

and Kate Weller on the 23rd September 2020 who described the trees as ‘a 
beautiful part of the local landscape and form a lovely environment to live in, 
and to walk in’. Alastair and Kate Weller also ‘hoped that the decision will be 
taken to confirm the Order and give it permanent effect’. The full email 
correspondence can be found in Appendix I.  

 
5.2 A letter was also received from Miss Fran Collinge which is attached in 

Appendix J. Although, in principle Miss Collinge agreed with the 
Preservation Order, there were concerns regarding the poor maintenance of 

Page 14



13 

the trees by the Owner and difficulties by Open Reach with their equipment. 
In response, a letter was sent on the 7th September 2020 which is attached 
in Appendix K. There is a telecommunications substation on the edge of the 
woodland which is accessed off Langhurst Road. It was confirmed to Miss 
Collinge that the owner remains responsible for trees covered by the 
preservation orders, their condition and any damage they may cause even 
though there is a Tree Preservation Order protecting them. It was also 
pointed out that the Preservation Order does not stop the trees being 
maintained or even felled but the authority’s permission would usually be 
required before any work is carried out to the trees.  

 
 The tree application process is free of charge to encourage tree owners to 

apply for tree works and includes free arboricultural advice. In addition, 
guidelines allow the owner to give the Council 5 working days’ notice if they 
believe a tree is dangerous. In this time, the Council will inspect the tree and 
give a formal decision on the notification, reducing the time to process an 
application which is normally 8 weeks under current Government guidelines. 

  
 Miss Collinge did enquire whether or not the Council could force the 

landowner to prune back the trees along the boundary as she though some 
were unsafe. It was noted at the time of inspection that a few trees along the 
boundary were either dead or growing over the roadway which prompted 
the trees along the woodland edge being excluded from the Order so they 
can be maintained at any time without the consent of the Council. There is 
also an exemption in the TPO legislation that allows Utility Company’s like 
Openreach to cut back trees without consent under certain conditions.   

  
6.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
6.1 That the proposed modifications to the Order suggested by Mr J Stockton 

and Mr A Bussey are dismissed and overruled and the Tree Preservation 
Order be confirmed as made.  

 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



14 

Appendices 
 
A Tree Evaluation Method for Preservation Orders (TEMPO) 
B Tree Preservation Order Site Plan   
C Photographs 1-8 
D Objection Letter Mr Bussey JCA Arboriculture Consultancy 
E Objection Email Mr Stockton 
F CBC Strategic Planning & Key Sites Manager’s comments 
G Response letter to the Mr Bussey JCA objection 
H Response letter to the Mr Stockton objection 
I Alastair and Kate Weller email correspondence  
J Miss Fran Collinge letter 
K Response letter to Miss Fran Collinge 
 
 

Paul Staniforth 
Development Management & Conservation Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



 

APPENDIX A 
TREE EVALUATION METHOD FOR PRESERVATION ORDERS (TEMPO)  

SURVEY DATA SHEET AND DECISION GUIDE 

 

Date: 13th August 2020 Surveyor: Steve Perry 

 

Tree Details 
TPO Ref: 4901.351  Tree/Group No. W1 Species: Mixed species including Ash, Sycamore,  
                                                                                                        Willow, Alder, Birch, Holly.   
Owner: 
Location: Langhurst Road off Ashgate Road 

 

a) Condition & suitability for TPO: 

Refer to Guidance Note for definitions 

5) Good   Highly suitable 

3) Fair    Suitable 

1) Poor    Unlikely to be suitable 

0) Dead/dying/dangerous* Unsuitable 

*relates to existing context & is intended to apply to severe irremediable defects only 

 

b) Remaining longevity (in years) & suitability for TPO: 

5) 100+    Highly suitable 

4) 40-100   Very suitable 

2) 20-40   Suitable 

1) 10-20   Just suitable 

0) <10*    Unsuitable 

*Includes trees which are existing or near future nuisance, including those clearly outgrowing their context, or which are 

significantly negating the potential or other trees of better quality 

 

c) Relative public visibility & suitability for TPO: 

Consider realistic potential for future visibility with changed land use 

5) Very large trees with some visibility, or prominent large trees  High suitable 

4) Large trees, or medium trees clearly visible to the public Suitable 

3) Medium trees, or large trees with limited view only  Suitable 

2) Small trees, or medium/large trees visible only with difficulty Barely suitable 

1) Trees not visible to the public, regardless of size  Probably unsuitable 

 

d) Other factors 

Trees must have accrued 7 or more points (with no zero score) to qualify 

5) Principal components of arboricultural features, or veteran trees 

4) Tree groups, or members of groups important for their cohesion 

3) Trees with identifiable historic, commemorative or habitat importance 

2) Trees of particularly good form, especially if rare or unusual 

1) Trees with none of the above additional redeeming features (incl. those of indifferent form) 

               

Part 2: Expediency assessment 

Trees must have accrued 9 or more points to qualify 

5) Immediate threat to tree 

3) Foreseeable threat to tree 

2) Perceived threat to tree 

1) Precautionary only 

               

Part 3: Decision guide 

Any 0  Do not apply TPO 

1-6  TPO indefensible 

7-11  Does not merit TPO 

12-15  TPO defensible 

16+  Definitely merits TPO 

Score and notes                 3 The woodland as a 

whole unit is highly suitable but downgraded 

as individual trees are of a lower grade. 

 

 

Score and notes 4 The trees 

are highly visible from 

Langhurst Road and the public 

footpath and cycle route off 

Holme brook. 

Score and notes 4 The trees as a 

whole unit contribute to the 

amenity of the area and River 

corridor.  

Score and notes 4 

 

 

Score and notes 5 An enquiry was been 

made to check the protection status of the 

trees for felling to allow the land to be 

cleared for development.   

Add Scores for Total: 

        20 

Decision:  

MERITS TPO 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



CHESTERFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
LANGHURST ROAD
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER No. 351. 2020

%FILE REF: 4901.351
PRINT AT: A4

SCALE: 1:1,500
SK 3668 7168

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty’s Stationery Office. © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Chesterfield Borough Council 
Licence number: 100018505, 2020.

U
nd

90.8m

129

127

141

39

52

35

64

65

40

75

FF

D
ef

95

85

Path

FW

R
H

W
ar

d 
B

dy

ESS

ED Bdy LB 10

117

Brockwell Junior School

Brockwell Nursery and Infant Schools

93.6m

177

153

95.4m

181

167

94.2m

16

CR

H
olm

e

C
R

Brook

CS

92.7m

30

FB

19 Path

Weir

92.2m

54

52

22

25 to 32

1
 to

 8

ED & Ward Bdy

197

Langhurst
Court

189

1

1 to 8

7

Court

1 to 8

Ashgate

Holmebrook

Court

9

4

46
42

5

6

17 to 24

9
 to

 1
6

8
6

10

98.1m

201225

5
6

1

2
5 246

211

223

T1

T1

W1

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Photograph 1 :  

W1 Woodland Viewed from Langhurst Road (Ashgate Road end) 

 

  

Page 21



Photograph 2 : W1 Woodland Viewed from Langhurst Road 

 

 

 

  

Page 22



Photograph 3 : W1 Woodland river corridor 

 

 

  

Page 23



Photograph 4 : W1 Woodland river corridor 

 

 

  

Page 24



Photograph 5 : W1 Woodland natural regeneration 

 

 

  

Page 25



Photograph 6 : W1 Woodland  

 

 

Page 26



Photograph 7 :  

W1 Woodland Viewed from Langhurst Road towards Holme Brook 

 

 

Page 27



Photograph 8 :  

W1 Woodland Viewed from public footpath/cycle path adjacent Holme 

Brook 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28



 
 
 
 
 
F.A.O Gerard Rogers 
Local Government and Regulatory Law Management 
Town Hall 
Chesterfield 
Derbyshire 
S40 1LP 
 
FAO: Gerard Rogers 
 
JCA Ref: 16289/AJB 
 
17th September 2020 
 
Dear Mr Rogers,  
 

TOWN & COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 – SECTION 198 
TOWN & COUNTRY PLANNING (TREE PRESERVATION) (ENGLAND) 

REGULATIONS 2012 
 

CHESTERFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER: NO 351, 2020 
 

YOUR REFERENCE: D3495 RA 
  
We refer to the above Tree Preservation Order (TPO) and by way of this letter we 
formally object to part of this Order on behalf of our client, Mr J Stockton, and 
respectfully request that the Order is not confirmed in its present form. This 
objection is in accordance with Regulation 6 (1) of the Town & Country Planning 
(Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012. 

The TPO schedule includes the protection of individual trees and several mixed 
groups of trees across the whole site.  

The grounds for making the Order are because:  

“The trees are in a prominent position and can be seen from surrounding residential 
properties, Langhurst Road, and along the footpath and cycle route along Holme 
Brook and as such are considered that they are an amenity enjoyed by the general 
public.” 

 

Registered Office: Unit 80 Bowers Mill Branch Road Barkisland Halifax West Yorkshire HX4 0AD 
Tel: 01422 376335 Fax: 01422 376232 Mobile: 07778 391986 Website: www.jcaac.com Email: jon@jcaac.com 
Directors: Jonathan Cocking F. R. E. S., Tech. Cert. (Arbor A), P. Dip. Arb. (R. F. S.), F. Arbor. A., CBiol, MIBiol, MIC For, Chartered Arboriculturist 

Catherine Cocking RGN RM Company Reg No. 05005041 VAT No. 686 4674 78 
Printed on FSC recycled paper endorsed by the Forest Stewardship Council. Made from 75% post-consumer waste and 25% FSC accredited pulp. 

Page 29



Tree Preservation Order Objection at: Langhurst Road, Chesterfield, Derbyshire, S40 4BD.  
JCA Ref: 16289/AJB.                                                                                                                     Page 2 of 3  

 JCA Limited 2019                           
 

“It is expedient to make an Order so that the trees can be retained as an amenity and 
effective control can be maintained over any further intentions for pruning or felling 
which may be proposed.”  

“It is also expedient to make an Order because enquiries have been made to fell the 
trees”. 

Site Visit, Site History and Tree Inspections 
 
The site was visited on the 16th of September 2020 by Andrew Bussey LANTRA 
Accredited PTI under the presence of Mr John Stockton. 

The Woodland Tree Preservation Order covers an area of trees which spans from 
Langhurst Road to the west, the rear gardens of Ashgate Road to the south and to 
Holme Brook which runs from the northwest to the south-eastern boundary of the 
site. 

Those trees which border Holme Brook were noted to be of a high quality in 
general, comprising of well-established Common Ash and Common Alder. These 
trees are considered to have the highest amenity value on site due to their size and 
their location adjacent to a public footpath/cycleway.  

The main area of the site comprises dense, self-seeded pioneer species including 
Goat Willow, Common Ash, Downy Birch and Hawthorn which have grown on an 
area which was originally used on as a dumping ground for pottery waste and 
furnace ash. It should be noted that Birch sp. was noted included on the TPO 
Schdule. 

Following this, the site was used as a builder’s yard up until the 70’s, indicating that 
the tree present throughout the main area of the site are unlikely to pre-date this 
date. This puts the oldest of the trees at circa 50 years in age.  

The trees located within the former dumping ground/builders’ yard were found to be 
of a poor individual form in general, being either of a multiple stemmed nature or of 
a poor and slender form. Additionally, as the majority of trees are located on what is 
made and loose ground, many trees were noted to have rising root plates, this is a 
sign that the trees have reached their full growth potential for their locations and are 
likely to collapse or fail in the near future. 

Those trees which are located on the former dumping ground/builders’ yard are not 
considered worthy of protected status under the remit of a Woodland Tree 
Preservation Order. 

 

 

 

Page 30



Tree Preservation Order Objection at: Langhurst Road, Chesterfield, Derbyshire, S40 4BD.  
JCA Ref: 16289/AJB.                                                                                                                     Page 3 of 3  

 JCA Limited 2019                           
 

 

Proposed Order Amendment   

In light of the fact that there are trees of note located adjacent to Holme Brook, our 
client has accepted that these trees are worthy of protected status and would like the 
Woodland Order to be amended to include these trees, as well as a 5 metre buffer 
from the top of the riverside bank into the site. This would retain the amenity value 
of the riverside woodland and retain the wildlife corridor that this group of trees 
provides. 

Please see the attached plan which shows an indication of the proposed amended 
Woodland Tree Preservation Order location. 

Future Site Use and Potential for New Tree Planting   

It should be noted that our client has intention for a future development within the 
confines of the former dumping ground/builders’ yard. During our site meeting, our 
client confirmed that new tree planting would form a substantial part of the 
development proposals.  

Additionally, our client also stated that he is more than happy to introduce new tree 
stock into the riverside woodland in order to enhance its amenity value and to 
provide a more varied species diversity.  

Conclusion:  

On behalf of our client, JCA objects to the Woodland Tree Preservation Order in 
full and respectfully requests that the order is revised to retain those trees as 
indicated on the attached plan.  

 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Andrew Bussey LANTRA Accredited PTI. 

17th September 2020 
 
For and on behalf of JCA Ltd. 
 
Enclosed: Amended Woodland Order Plan  
  
 

Page 31



N

E

S

W

0 2010 30 40 501

Amended Woodland

Order Plan

ADDRESS: Langhurst Road, Chesterfield,
Derbyshire, S40 4BD.
JCA REF: 16289/AJB

PAPER SIZE : A3SCALE : 1:1000

Arboricultural & Ecological Consultants

L
im

ite
d

PROPOSED NEW WOODLAND
ORDER LOCATION

Page 32



Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



 

1 
 

Planning Services 

Development Management 

Town Hall 

Chesterfield 

Derbyshire  

S40 1LP 

 

9th October 2020 

 

Dear Andrew Bussey,  

 

Tree Preservation Order 351 Langhurst Road (2020) 

 

I refer to your part objection to Tree Preservation Order 351 Langhurst Road (2020) 

on the 17th September 2020 on behalf of your client Mr J Stockton.  

 

You object to the Order in its current form on the following points to which I have 

responded: 

 

The main area of the site comprises dense, self-seeded pioneer species 

including Goat Willow, Common Ash, Downy Birch and Hawthorn which have 

grown on an area which was originally used on as a dumping ground for 

pottery waste and furnace ash. It should be noted that Birch sp. was noted 

included on the TPO Schedule. 

 

Firstly, in response to your comment ‘It should be noted that Birch sp. was noted 

included on the TPO Schedule’. I believe this is a typing error and you mean Birch 

species was not included in the 1st Schedule but are present on site.  

 

Tree Preservation Orders (TPO) are served if the Local Planning Authority believe 

there is a risk of the trees being cut down or pruned in ways which would have a 

significant impact on the amenity of the area. Any tree, that one would normally call a 

tree can be protected by a Tree Preservation Order and in this situation, the LPA 

believes that the trees as a whole unit at Langhurst Road are at risk generally from 

development pressures and would have been felled. The protection of trees by a 

precautionary TPO is therefore considered expedient so that the Council has control 

over any future proposals to fell or prune the trees.  

 

Whether trees are self-seeded, planted or pioneering species is not a valid reason 

why the Order should not be confirmed. Furthermore, many mature woodlands that 

exist today were established by natural succession rather than being planted 

containing localised native tree stock which is by far the preferred option for a natural 

woodland.  

Page 41



 

2 
 

Finally, Birch trees as well as apple, Laburnum, Lombardy Poplar, Cherry, Holly and 

Elder are also not included in the 1st Schedule even though they are present on the 

site because a woodland Order covers all the trees within the woodland area and it is 

not necessary for the purposes of a woodland TPO to record the number of trees 

and all species of tree, and a general description should be sufficient.   

 

The trees located within the former dumping ground/builders’ yard were found 

to be of a poor individual form in general, being either of a multiple stemmed 

nature or of a poor and slender form. Additionally, as the majority of trees are 

located on what is made and loose ground, many trees were noted to have 

rising root plates, this is a sign that the trees have reached their full growth 

potential for their locations and are likely to collapse or fail in the near future. 

 

The land may have been used as a waste tip for pottery waste and ash, but it would 

have also been used for various other uses in the past and it is clear the trees have 

taken advantage of the poor ground conditions. I have visited the site on many 

occasions and walked through the whole area and found no evidence to suggest that 

where there is made-up ground it is detrimental to the tree’s health or long-term 

growth or stability. There are some trees within the woodland that are of a poor 

condition but that is a natural occurrence in a woodland setting. There is also one 

dead Birch tree on the woodland edge that does require removing but this could be 

removed at any time by giving the Council 5 working days’ notice of removal. The 

current situation is that the land is covered by trees which are of various sizes, 

species and age. It may be the case that some of the trees are no more than 50 

years in age but there are also trees that are younger and older creating a multi aged 

small woodland. The is also evidence to suggest that natural regeneration is 

occurring in the woodland with Ash, Sycamore, Hawthorn, Hazel, Holly and Yew 

emerging which will succeed and take advantage when other trees are lost.  

 

A woodland Preservation Order safeguards the woodland as a whole unit rather than 

individual trees. Trees which are planted or grow naturally within the woodland area 

after the TPO is made are also protected by the TPO so that the natural regeneration 

is continued. It may be the case that some of the trees within the woodland are poor 

in condition and multi stemmed but for the purpose of a Tree Preservation Order, it is 

the contribution the woodland makes as a local amenity adjacent to the River 

Corridor, public footpath and roadway why the preservation order was served.  

 

There is no doubt that if I walked through the woodland, I could find many trees that 

could be felled due to their condition and form if assessed individually but this would 

be the case for many individual trees within any woodland. It is their overall visual 

impact and contribution to the local area that has been considered. Furthermore, if 

any individual trees become unsafe then the Tree Preservation Order application 

process can be used to remove any tree that could become or is a danger to the 

general public.  

 

Page 42



 

3 
 

There is no evidence to suggest that the trees on the site are coming to the end of 

their lifespan due to the nature of the ground. It is accepted that there are some trees 

of poor quality and condition, but this is a natural occurrence in a woodland setting 

as each tree competes for nutrients, water and light. Natural succession will occur, 

and it is inevitable that the more dominant species will take over and natural 

regeneration replace lost species.  

 

Those trees which are located on the former dumping ground/builders’ yard 

are not considered worthy of protected status under the remit of a Woodland 

Tree Preservation Order.  

 

An assessment/evaluation was made of the woodland using the Tree Evaluation 

Method for Preservation Orders (TEMPO) which is attached to this response. It is 

clear from the assessment that the woodland is highly suitable for a Preservation 

Order.  

 

As previously mentioned, the woodland has been considered for a Tree Preservation 

Order as a whole unit and not as individual trees.  

  

In light of the fact that there are trees of note located adjacent to Holme Brook, 

our client has accepted that these trees are worthy of protected status and 

would like the Woodland Order to be amended to include these trees, as well 

as a 5 metre buffer from the top of the riverside bank into the site. This would 

retain the amenity value of the riverside woodland and retain the wildlife 

corridor that this group of trees provides. It should be noted that our client has 

intention for a future development within the confines of the former dumping 

ground/builders’ yard. During our site meeting, our client confirmed that new 

tree planting would form a substantial part of the development proposals. 

Additionally, our client also stated that he is more than happy to introduce new 

tree stock into the riverside woodland in order to enhance its amenity value 

and to provide a more varied species diversity.  

 

The trees located along the River corridor are included in the Tree Preservation 

Order and are therefore already protected. The remainder of trees within the 

preservation order are a continuation of the River corridor habitat and provide a 

green wedge which is identified in the Council new Local Plan 2018-2035. 

 

Any formal planning application submitted would, under Section 38(6) of the 

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and section 70(2) of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990, need to be determined in accordance with the current 

adopted development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  The 

development plan for the borough is the Chesterfield Borough Local Plan 2018-2035.  

The Local Plan clearly identifies the site as open space and as part of a Green 

Wedge on the policies map (the yellow stripes, below). 

 

 

Page 43



 

4 
 

 

 

 
Chesterfield Borough Local Plan 2018-2035 

 

 

 

Under policy CLP15 development proposals should not harm the character and 

function of the Green Wedge, the purpose of which is to: 

 

• maintain open areas between parts of settlements within the urban area of 

Chesterfield to prevent them from merging; 

• provide a ‘Green Lung’, penetrating from open countryside into an urban area; 

• support recreational purposes which allow access from urban areas to the 

countryside and, where appropriate, contains informal and formal outdoor 

recreational facilities; 

• maintain the existing or influence the form and direction of urban 

development. 

 

Development of this site would contradict the purposes of the Green Wedge and 

conflict with the Local Plan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 44



 

5 
 

At the present time no planning application has been submitted to the Council to 

develop the land but if one is received, the proposals and layout will be considered 

through the normal planning process and a decision made on the information 

provided and the affects the development will have on the protected trees within the 

woodland Order and Local Plan.  

 

I hope this answers your points raised in objecting to the Order and if I can be of 

further assistance please do not hesitate to contact me.  

 

Regards 

 

 
Steve Perry 

Tree Officer (Planning) 

 

 

 

Page 45

Appleyardr
Rectangle



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57



Page 58



 
 

Planning Services 

Development Management 

Town Hall 

Chesterfield 

Derbyshire S40 1LP 

 

E-Mail  steve.perry@chesterfield.gov.uk 

 

       Please ask for Steve Perry  

    

       Direct Line  01246 959702 

       

       Our Ref  SP/4901.351 

      

 

         7th September 2020 

 

Dear Miss Fran Collinge 

 

Chesterfield Borough Council (Langhurst Road) Tree Preservation Order 351,- 

2020. 

 

I refer to your recent communication regarding the provisional Tree Preservation 

Order referenced above and the general maintenance of the trees now the woodland 

is protected by the provisional Order.  

 

I can confirm that the owner remains responsible for trees covered by the 

preservation orders, their condition and any damage they may cause even though 

there is a Tree Preservation Order protecting them. This does not stop the trees 

being maintained or even felled but the authority’s permission is usually required 

before any work is carried out to the trees. In general, most pruning/felling 

applications that the Council receive are granted consent and the works can then be 

carried out to the specification on the decision notice. The only time applications are 

refused is if the works are deemed unnecessary, do not conform to BS3998 Tree 

Works or are not good arboricultural/foresrty practice and would reduce the trees 

amenity value.  

 

  

Page 59



 
 

The tree application process is free of charge to encourage tree owners to apply for 

tree works and includes free arboricultural advice. It is however, up to the tree owner 

whether or not they apply for any works but they do have a duty of care so if at any 

time there is a dangerous tree, the Council can then inform the Owner to respond or 

if the tree is in such a state that it may fail imminently then the Council can carry out 

the works and recover the cost at a later date. In addition, guidelines allow the owner 

to give the Council 5 working days’ notice if they believe a tree is dangerous. In this 

time, the Council will inspect the tree and give a formal decision on the notification 

reducing the time to process an application which is normally 8 weeks under current 

Government guidelines.  

With regard to your enquiry as to whether or not the Council can force the landowner 

to prune back the trees along the boundary then please note on the TPO site plan, 

that the trees along the boundary of Langhurst Road have been excluded from the 

Order for the exact reasons you have mentioned so that they can be maintained at 

any time without the consent of the Council. There is also an exemption in the TPO 

legislation that allows Utility Company’s like Openreach to cut back trees without 

consent under certain conditions.   

Finally, even though the trees are protected by a Preservation Order the only thing 

that has changed is that the Owner would need permission off the Council to fell or 

prune the trees. As with any woodland, a woodland management plan is advised, 

however that responsibility is down to the landowner.  

I hope this answers your enquiry and if you have any other concerns then please do 

not hesitate to contact me.  

 

Yours sincerely 

  

 

Steve Perry 

Tree Officer (Planning) 

 

 

 

Page 60


	Agenda
	3 Chesterfield Borough Council (Langhurst Road) Tree Preservation Order No. 351, 2020
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E
	Appendix F
	Appendix G
	Appendix H
	Appendix I
	Appendix J
	Appendix K


